
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, 
August 23, 2011 at 6:34 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Braden Mitchell, Chairman 

Blair Jones, Commissioner 
Bart Stevens, Commissioner  
Michael Staten, Commissioner 
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
David Gailey, Commissioner  

Members Excused:     Brent Ellis, Commissioner  
 
Others Present:  Randy Daily, Community Development Director and Ember Herrick, City 
Recorder and no members of the public.   
 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Chairman Mitchell welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record all members 
were present except for Commissioner Ellis who is excused.   
 
B.   Open Communications  
None. 
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Director Randy Daily said there was nothing new on the report not 
discussed in the earlier work session.   
 
D.   Consent Items  
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  
 July 26, 2011 Work Session 
 July 26, 2011 Planning Commission  
 

Motion:   Commissioner Staten moved to approve the consent items with the changes 
discussed in the earlier work session.  Commissioner Hilton seconded the motion  

 
    Call the Question:    
    The motion passed unanimously. 
 
E. Action Items 
Chairman Mitchell said there was a petition before the Planning Commission to amend the 
zoning map for Aunt Nancy’s Assisted Care Facility.  Mr. Daily said the City Council had 
approved the final site plan conditional upon a rezone of the property at 1580 West Ritter Drive 
from an A-1 to a Low Impact Transitional Zone.  According to Mr. Daily, the Council had also 
discussed the area adjacent to the project where a memory care facility is tentatively proposed 
and he asked the Planning Commission what they envision the area becoming.  Commissioner 
Stevens said he commends the city for looking ahead as to future development uses but is 
reluctant to rezone the Aunt Nancy’s property at this time in case the developer doesn’t build as 
that could open the area up to allow unintended uses.  According to Commissioner Stevens, he 



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   August 23, 2011  

would support the rezone once the project is built.  Commissioner Gailey said one advantage to 
rezoning the area now would be to encourage other similar developments if one proposal falls 
through.  Commissioner Staten said he feels it would be wise to discuss the land use, zoning, and 
changing the general plan now to prepare for future development.  He said the new traffic 
restrictions have quieted congestion concerns for the present on Ritter Drive and his biggest 
reservation is preventing commercial developments from encroaching on residential areas on the 
south side of Riverdale.  According to Commissioner Staten, the job of the Planning Commission 
is to determine land use and he doesn’t think commercial zoning would be appropriate for the 
area in question.  Commissioner Hilton pointed out it is too late as there are existing commercial 
businesses already in the area.  He said a transitional zone might serve as an effective buffer 
between residential and future development.  Commissioner Staten agreed with the suggestion to 
create a transitional buffer zone and recommended setting a public hearing to get community 
feedback.   
 
Mr. Daily said one of the items on the upcoming Strategic Planning meeting agenda involves 
rezoning the Hayward Business Park development to build owner-occupied town homes with a 
density of 10 to 12 per acre.  Commissioner Hilton asked what the parcel is currently zoned for 
and Mr. Daily said it is CP 3 Commercial.  Commissioner Staten said town homes could create 
the low density buffer between commercial and residential the Planning Commission is looking 
for.  Mr. Daily clarified for the Commission which of the areas in question is owned by the city 
or by private individuals.   
 
Mr. Daily asked if there were additional questions about the petitioner’s request to rezone the 
Aunt Nancy’s property.  Commissioner Jones asked if this is the only parcel of land being looked 
at for a rezone and Mr. Daily confirmed that it is.  Commissioner Stevens said he doesn’t believe 
a rezone is appropriate until there is significant financial investment but agreed that the whole 
area needs to be looked at relative to the General Plan.  Commissioner Stevens said Leon 
Poulson’s adjacent land is prime for development but added it is up to the buyer to determine 
what they would like to build, not the Planning Commission.  He said the Commission’s role is 
to approve or deny requests by developers and land owners.  Chairman Mitchell agreed it is not 
appropriate for the Planning Commission to pre-determine what an area will be without specific 
requests.  Commissioner Gailey said if the developer of the town homes petitions the 
Commission for a zone change that could help determine the future of the area.  Mr. Daily said 
the development may require a new zone be drafted as it may not fit under the PRUD ordinance.  
Commissioner Gailey pointed out that anyone can petition the Planning Commission for a land 
use rezone but not everyone has the resources to buy and develop that piece of property.  
Commissioner Jones agreed that the Planning Commission should wait until the Aunt Nancy’s 
deal is finalized with funding approved before rezoning the land.   
 
There were no additional comments or questions.   
 

Motion:   Commissioner Hilton made a motion to decline the petition to set a public 
hearing to rezone the property where a final site plan has been approved to build Aunt 
Nancy’s Assisted Living Center located at 1580 West Ritter Drive in an A-1 zone.  
Commissioner Gailey seconded the motion.   

 
     Call the Question:    
     The motion passed unanimously. 



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   August 23, 2011  

 
F.   Discretionary Items 
Mr. Daily reminded the Commissioners that the Meet the Candidates night will be held at the 
Senior Center on Thursday August 25, 2011 at 7 PM.  Commissioner Gailey asked that the 
Public Works department be commended for their upkeep of the Golden Spike Park that he and 
his family used for a reunion last week.  Mr. Daily said he would relay the message.  
Commissioner Staten asked about the agenda for the Strategic Planning meeting and how he 
could get his suggestions for revising the General Plan on the agenda and Mr. Daily said he 
should email City Administrator Larry Hansen.  Commissioner Hilton asked about the meeting 
format and Mr. Daily gave the Commission a brief rundown.  Commissioner Stevens asked what 
other items are on the agenda besides the General Plan and Mr. Daily said recycling will also be 
discussed.   
 
     Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission  
                  Commissioner Staten moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner   
                    Jones seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting  
                   adjourned at 7:08 p.m.   
 
Approved:  September 14, 2011           Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Braden Mitchell, Chairman                        Ember Herrick, City Recorder  
 
 
 
 
 


